
 

The Reports listed above can be made available in alternative formats for the 
visually impaired. For further information about this service, or if you have any 

queries regarding the above items please contact Karen Luck on 01622 602743 
 

 

REPORTS FOR DECISION BY THE 

CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE SERVICES 

 

Date Issued: 06 October 2011 

 

 

 

 Page Nos. 

1. Report of the Head of Democratic Services - Response to 

Government Consultation Paper on Individual Electoral 
Registration  

 

1 - 73 

2. Report of the Assistant Director of Environment and 
Regulatory Services - Land at Farleigh Hill, Tovil  

 
 
 

EXEMPT ITEMS 
 

74 - 84 

3. Exempt Appendix to the Report of the Assistant Director 

of Environment and Regulatory Services - Land at 
Farleigh Hill Tovil  

85 - 88 

 
 
 

 
 

 

A Record of Decision will be issued following the 

conclusion of 5 clear working days from the date of issue 
of the Report 

 



 

MAIDSTONE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE SERVICES 

 

REPORT OF HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

 
Report prepared by Neil Harris   

Date Issued: 5 October 2011 

 

1. RESPONSE TO GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION PAPER ON 

INDIVIDUAL ELECTORAL REGISTRATION  

 

1.1 Key Issue for Decision 
 

1.1.1 To consider the draft response to the Government Consultation Paper 
on Individual Electoral Registration. 

 

1.2 Recommendation of the Head of Democratic Services 
 

1.2.1 That the draft response to the Government Consultation Paper on 
Individual Electoral Registration as set out in Appendix A to the report 
be agreed. 
 

1.3 Reasons for Recommendation 
 
1.3.1 Currently the system of registering to vote is undertaken by an annual 

canvass at which point a registration form is sent to each household 
and 1 individual in each household takes responsibility for its 
completion and return.  This system has been in place for over 100 
years and has a potential for fraud as the information supplied has no 
corroborating evidence like a signature, National Insurance 
Number(NINO) or date of birth(DoB).   Therefore, the Electoral 
Commission and others have been pushing for change. As a result the 
previous Government had agreed to introduce individual electoral 
registration but intended first introducing it on a voluntary basis before 
making it compulsory.  The new Coalition Government agreed to bring 
forward the program and make it compulsory from the outset and 
have decided to introduce the new system in 2014 so it is in place for 
the 2015 General Election.  The strength of this system is that each 
individual takes responsibility for their entries and the proposed new 
system has introduced corroborating evidence such as the NINO and 
DoB.  A White Paper setting out the draft legislation and the proposals 
for individual electoral registration has been issued and comments 
have been sought from relevant bodies by Friday 14 October 2011.  
The White Paper is attached at Appendix B to the report and a draft 
response to the proposals has been attached at Appendix A. 

Agenda Item 1

1



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\0\AI00010061\$an45y22h.doc 

 
1.3.2 The response supports the principle of the introduction of individual 

electoral registration but expresses concerns over a number of 
technical issues such as there being no need for a signature.  Concern 
was also expressed about the potential loss of electors registered to 
vote which is felt would be a minimum of 10%.   
 

1.3.3 Additionally, like any new legislation, there will be a financial impact 
from the introduction of such a proposal and the Government in the 
Paper have indicated that they will provide an additional £85m in the 
spending review settlement 2014 – 2015 to fund registration officers 
to make contact with each potential elector individually inviting them 
to register.  Additionally, the Government will provide ongoing 
additional registration costs of £31.8m after the first year as the work 
required in future years is less than the first year. 

 
1.4 Alternative Action and why not Recommended 
 
1.4.1 The Council could decide to not put its comments in relation to the 

changes on the introduction of individual electoral registration, but to 
do so would not give the Council an opportunity to influence changes 
to the proposed legislation. 

 
1.5 Impact on Corporate Objectives 
 
1.5.1 In addition to minimizing risk of potential fraud in the election system 

it would improve the service to the customer and provide a more 
robust service for all those people voting thereby improving customer 
excellence for all residents in Maidstone. 

 
1.6 Risk Management  
 
1.6.1 There are no risk management issues arising out of responding to the 

draft legislation on individual electoral registration. 
 
1.7 Other Implications  
 
1.7.1  

1. Financial 
 

 
X 

2. Staffing 
 

 
 

3. Legal 
 

 
X 

4. Equality Impact Needs Assessment 
 

 
 

5. Environmental/Sustainable Development 
 

 

2



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\0\AI00010061\$an45y22h.doc 

6. Community Safety 
 

 

7. Human Rights Act 
 

 

8. Procurement 
 

 

9. Asset Management 
 

 

 
 
1.7.2 As indicated earlier the government has agreed that £85m will be 

provided for all local authorities across the country for the introduction 
of individual electoral registration and that this will be included in the 
spending review settlement.  However, the spending review settlement 
is not ring-fenced and there is therefore no guarantee that this 
resource will be allocated for this purpose. However in anticipation of 
this change the Council has set aside a sum of £100k in the budget 

strategy for 2014.  Having examined the proposal set out in the draft 
legislation and compared it to the existing method of compiling the 
electoral register it has been possible to make an initial calculation of 
the potential additional costs for compilation of the electoral register 
under the new system.   

 
1.7.3 In 2014 it is expected that with the additional stages and literature to 

be sent out and the need to send a form to and seek registration of 
every individual elector the additional cost of the introduction of this 
new system is estimated at £90k.  The system for 2015 and beyond 
does not require the same level of activity and therefore the additional 
costs of this is estimated at £50k per annum.  However, it must be 
remembered that these figures are initial calculations and will be 
subject to change as more detail is fleshed out on the proposals and 
equally as legislation becomes law.   

 
1.7.4 The legal implications are detailed in the body of the report. 
 
1.8 Conclusions   
 
1.8.1 None 
 
1.9 Relevant Documents 
 
1.9.1 Appendices   

 
1.9.2 Appendix A – Draft Response  

 
1.9.3 Appendix B – Government consultation paper on individual electoral 

registration 
 

3



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\0\AI00010061\$an45y22h.doc 

1.9.4 Background Documents  
1.9.5 None 

 

 
 

 

IS THIS A KEY DECISION REPORT? 
 
Yes                                         No 
 
 
If yes, when did it first appear in the Forward Plan?  
 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

 
 
This is a Key Decision because: ……………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
 
Wards/Parishes affected: ………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

 

 
 

How to Comment 

 
Should you have any comments on the issue that is being considered please 
contact either the relevant Officer or the Member of the Executive who will be 
taking the decision. 
 
Councillor Eric Hotson  Cabinet Member for Corporate Services  

 Telephone: 01580 892312 
 E-mail:  erichotson@maidstone.gov.uk 
 
Neil Harris  Head of Democratic Services 
 Telephone: 01622 602020 
 E-mail:  neilharris@maidstone.gov.uk 
 

X 

4



APPENDIX A 
 

MAIDSTONE BOROUGH COUNCIL RESPONSE TO THE PROPOSALS 
PUBLISHED IN THE UK GOVERNMENTS WHITE PAPER – INDIVIDUAL 

ELECTORAL REGISTRATION 
 

 

Overarching comment. 
 

The Council would firstly like to thank the Government for an opportunity to 
comment on its proposals for a significant change in the legislation relating to 
Electoral Registration.  The Council supports the Governments commitment to 

the introduction of individual Electoral Registration and sees it as an important 
step forward to securing the electoral system in Great Britain against potential 

fraud in the system.  The Council is also pleased to note the Governments 
commitment to speeding up the timetable for implementation and making it a 
permanent change from the outset rather than having a voluntary phase at first. 

 
The Council also supports the intention to undertake data matching pilots to 

assist the transition and to test what other data might be useful to Electoral 
Registration Officers in creating and maintaining registers within this new 

system.  These pilots are currently ongoing in a number of local authorities 
across Great Britain and this Council looks forward to the evaluation of this pilot 
activity and from that evaluation the determination of whether it would be 

appropriate to extend this activity across the country to improve the 
completeness and accuracy of the Register. The Council also welcomes the 

intention with these changes to reduce fraud and to make the registration 
system more accessible to under represented groups and to those with special 
requirements including disabled people. 

 
The Council supports the Governments approach to the annual canvass which is 

to review the outcomes of the 2014 and 2015 canvass and the evaluation of the 
data matching pilots indexing before determining the future of the Annual 
Canvass beyond 2015.  The Council also supports the change in start date to 1 

July as this Council already starts its canvass in July. 
 

Specific Comments 
 
1. Without the requirement for a signature it would be impossible to prove 

who had completed the Individual Electoral Registration (IER) form.  Most 
people have access to their partner / children’s National Insurance 

Number (NINO) and know their date of birth.  It would be simple for one 
person to complete all the necessary forms for the people in their house.  
A signature would prove who had completed the form.  Additionally it will 

be more difficult to obtain the NINO at the door which will result in fewer 
forms collected at the door and a detrimental impact on the total return. 

 
2. A signature should be required from everyone who does not wish to be 

chased for a completed form.  Otherwise at election time they will deny 

that they completed the form to this effect and we will have no proof. 
 

3. The IER forms that are sent out personally addressed to existing electors 

5



will be redirected by Royal Mail if that person has moved away and had 
their post redirected.  It will be impossible to know whether a form has 

actually been delivered to the property it is sent to.  If someone who has 
moved away returns the form for their previous address it will cause 

significant problems. 
 

4. People will not bother to return IER forms addressed to former occupants.  

They will bin the forms and in many cases not bother to request a form for 
themselves. 

 
5. It is felt that there will be a drop in the number of electors registered to 

vote.  It is quite possible that the electoral register will lose a minimum of 

10%.  Without the threat of a fine and with the option to choose not to 
register and the ability to stop us from chasing up non-responders 

Electoral Registration Officers will have no power or authority to act.  As 
they stand these proposals rely upon people wanting to register to vote.  
Experience has shown that there are a significant percentage of people 

who do not want to register to vote.  The first form has a response from 
approximately 70% of households.  The canvassers and the second form 

have a response from approximately 12 – 15% of households.  The final 
form which is accompanied by a letter detailing the fine for not providing 

the information required has a response from approximately 7 – 10% of 
households.  2 – 3% are included from information from Council Tax.  A 
response is never obtained from approximately 4 – 5% of households.  It 

is felt that the 7 – 10% response to the letter will be completely lost, the 
4 -5% who never register will continue not to register and those people 

who only complete the form because they know there is a legal 
requirement to do so will now stop completing the form.  This will not 
affect the 2014 register as all non-responders will be carried over.  

However the 2015 register will be significantly affected with possibly only 
80 – 85% of electors having registered under IER. 

 
6. Using the example of the Northern Ireland (NI) experience is only relevant 

if the demographic and culture of registering to vote and voting is the 

same in England, Wales and Scotland.  It is felt that the culture in 
Northern Ireland is not the same as here where apathy and a sense of 

distrust and detachment between voters and politicians are the overriding 
issues.  Therefore it is felt that you cannot draw comparisons between the 
experience of NI in moving to IER and what will happen when it is 

introduced to the rest of the country.   
 

7. The Council welcomes that funds will be included within the spending 
review settlement in 2014 / 15 to fund electoral registration officers 
making contact with each elector individually and equally that they accept 

that if the data matching pilot schemes are rolled out across Great Britain, 
additional funds could be made available for that process as well.  

However, it would be helpful to know how the costs were worked out in 
order to arrive at the figure of £85m within the spending review and a 
total cost of £108m. 

 
The Council also welcomes that beyond 2014 the Government accepts 

there will be an annual cost of £31.8m and accepts as the Government 

6



has indicated that if the annual canvass was stopped that the costs of 
compiling the register would reduce significantly.  Again, it would welcome 

how these figures have been worked out. 
 

The Council also considers that in order to provide a successful 
implementation of the new system, it is important that the funding 
provided for this service is identified and set aside for this purpose within 

the spending review settlement. 
 

Proposals 
 
1. It is suggested that the requirement for a signature is included on the IER 

form only to provide a further check on fraud.  This would still allow 
significant online and telephone registration in later years. 

 
2. The IER form sent out should be clearly identified for return to the ERO, if 

the person has moved, rather than being redirected by Royal Mail.  This 

could be dealt with direct with Royal Mail in light of the quantity of post 
involved. 

 
3. The current offence (with a fine of up to £1000) to fail to comply with a 

request for information from the ERO should be retained which will allow 
the existing letter, from which this Council receives 7-10% of the total 
electorate response rate, to be continued to be used. 

 
 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



 

MAIDSTONE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE SERVICES 

 

REPORT OF ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT AND 

REGULATORY SERVICES  

 
Report prepared by: Lucy Stroud   

Date Issued: 06 October 2011     

 

1. LAND AT FARLEIGH HILL TOVIL 
 
1.1 Issue for Decision 
 

1.1.1 To consider a request to alter the Termination Date contained within a 
Principal Agreement (“the Contract”)  for the sale of part of the 
Council’s land situated at Farleigh Hill Tovil (“the Land”) and dated 8th 
November 2007 between the Council and Patrick Joseph Burke, Pamela 
Anne Burke & Pensioneer Trustees (London) Ltd ‘the Buyer’, in order to 
permit the Buyer an opportunity to fulfill its legal obligations as set out 
in the Contract for remediation of part of the former municipal 
household waste site which makes up the whole of the Land. 

 
1.2 Recommendation of Assistant Director of Environment and Regulatory 

Services 
 
1.2.1 That the Cabinet Member agrees to alter the Termination Dates 

defined within the Contract, from the original dates of 7th February 
2009 and 7th November 2010 to 23 June 2014 and 7 November 2014 
respectively , in order to give the Buyer an opportunity to fulfill its 
legal obligations as set out in the Contract 

 
1.3 Reasons for Recommendation 
 
1.3.1 In April 2003 the Cabinet decided (report attached as an Exempt 

Appendix)  to proceed with the disposal of part of the Borough 
Council owned land at Farleigh Hill, Tovil (edged red upon the 
indicative plan attached as Appendix II), to the adjacent land-owner 
(‘the Buyer’), as part of a proposed housing scheme (indicative plan 
attached as Appendix III). 

 
1.3.2 Heads of Terms for sale of the Land were considered and agreed by 

the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services in a Decision dated 20th 
April 2007, and a Contract dated 8th November 2007 ‘the Contract’ was 
entered into between the Council as ‘Seller’ and Patrick Joseph Burke, 
Pamela Anne Burke & Pensioneer Trustees (London) Ltd as ‘Buyer’. 

Agenda Item 2

74



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\1\AI00009149\$ryb1by23.doc 

 
1.3.3 The Land is part of a former household waste disposal site and under 

the terms of the Contract the Buyer agrees to undertake substantial 
remediation works prior to its development for residential housing. The 
Contract permits the Buyer, by way of a Licence, to enter upon the 
land to carry out these remediation works. 

 
1.3.4 The downturn in the residential property market has meant that the 

proposed remediation works have been deferred until an improvement 
in the market returns, and the Buyer can no longer meet the originally 
agreed termination dates set out in the Contract. 
 

1.3.5 The Contract currently provides that on the initial Termination Date of 
7 February 2009 either party could end the Contract should 
remediation works not commence, with a further Termination Date of 
7 November 2010 applying, should these remediation works not then 
be completed. 
 

1.3.6  As stated, there has been a delay due to the economically depressed 
residential housing development market and the Buyer is currently 
seeking renewal of the outline planning consent granted in 2001 
(MA/01/0686), under application MA/10/0256 and a resolution to grant 
(subject to a s106 Agreement) was made 1st July 2011  The Buyer has 
proposed a variation (attached as Appendix I) to the Principal 
Agreement , deferring the termination dates from 7 February 2009 to 
23 June 2014 and from 7 November 2010 to 7 November 2014, 
respectively.  This variation is linked in with the application to renew 
the planning consent. 

 
1.4 Alternative Action and why not Recommended 
 
1.4.1 The Cabinet Member could decide to take no action with regard to this 

matter.  This would mean the Council could determine the Contract, 
resulting in the Council continuing to own and maintain land identified 
as polluted and a source of potential problems to adjoining land that 
may result in the Council having to carry out further remediation works 
at a future date.  
 

1.4.2 It does not follow that if the Termination Dates are extended the Buyer 
will be in a position to fulfill its obligations set out in the Contract since 
this depends on the health of the housing market, but without an 
extension of time this land sale, as currently agreed, will definitely 
end.  

75



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\1\AI00009149\$ryb1by23.doc 

 
1.5 Impact on Corporate Objectives 
 
1.5.1 If the Contract is determined the Council may find itself exposed to a 

significant remediation cost implication that would impact upon its 
medium term financial strategy.  Even though Kent County Council 
used and operated the site for a number of years since the nineteen-
seventies, Maidstone Borough Council was, and remains, the freehold 
owner, and therefore has obligations under the Environmental 
Protection Act 1995. 
 

1.5.2 Clearly, were the Council not prepared to extend the deadline, the 
Buyer would be able to rescind the contract resulting in the site not 
being developed for residential accommodation as the proposed 
development is intrinsically linked to the Council’s land, and this would 
therefore impact upon the Council’s targets for new housing. 

 
1.6 Risk Management  
 
1.6.1 As indicated above, the Council’s intention is to dispose of this land for 

remediation and redevelopment.  Should the Contract be terminated 
the Council may expose itself to significant on-costs.  By agreeing an 
extension of time to the Principal Agreement as set out within this 
report, the Council reduces that risk substantially. 

 
1.7 Other Implications  

 
1.7.1  

1. Financial 
 

X 
 

2. Staffing 
 

 
 

3. Legal 
 

X 
 

4. Equality Impact Needs Assessment 
 

 
 

5. Environmental/Sustainable Development 
 

X 

6. Community Safety 
 

 

7. Human Rights Act 
 

 

8. Procurement 
 

 

9. Asset Management 
 

X 

 

76



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\1\AI00009149\$ryb1by23.doc 

 
1.7.2 Financial 

If this Agreement is terminated, the Council may be exposed to 
considerable environmental management and pollution control 
costs, which have not been accounted for in the Council’s 
medium term financial strategy.  Outline costs were detailed in 
a Decision made by Cabinet 9 April 2003 and attached as the 
Exempt Appendix 
 

1.7.3 Legal 
Legal Services will be required to allocate resources for 
producing and finalising any amendment to the Agreement. 
Amending the Termination Dates will ensure the Contract 
remains extant. 
 

1.7.4 Environmental/Sustainable Development 
The proposed scheme will involve the removal of many tons of 
decomposing household waste for reprocessing, therefore 
reducing the amount of contaminated land in the Borough. 
 

1.7.5 Asset Management 

The proposed scheme will reduce the amount of contaminated 
land retained by the Borough. 

 
1.8 Relevant Documents 
 
1.8.1 Appendices 

  
1.8.2 Appendix I (draft variation to Principal Agreement) 

 
1.8.3 Appendix II (Council-owned land) 

 
1.8.4 Appendix III (Development site) 

 
1.8.5 Exempt Appendix 

 
1.8.6 Background Documents 

 
1.8.7 Cabinet Member for Corporate Services Decision  20th April 2007 

 
1.8.8 Planning Application MA/01/0686 & MA/10/0256 

 

77



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\1\AI00009149\$ryb1by23.doc 

 
 

 

IS THIS A KEY DECISION REPORT? 
 
Yes                                         No X 
 
 
If yes, when did it first appear in the Forward Plan?  
 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

 
 
This is a Key Decision because: ……………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
 
Wards/Parishes affected: ………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

 

 
 

How to Comment 
 
Should you have any comments on the issue that is being considered please 
contact either the relevant Officer or the Member of the Executive who will be 
taking the decision. 
 
Cllr Eric Hotson  Cabinet Member for Corporate Services  
 Telephone: 01580 892312 
 E-mail:  erichotson@maidstone.gov.uk 
 
Lucy Stroud  Corporate Property Assistant 
 Telephone: 01622 602015 
 E-mail:  lucystroud@maidstone.gov.uk 
 

78



79



Asb law LLP 
 

File Ref: 00066170\00000005\$cr4heaqh.doc  1
 CLIENT NO: 66170 MATTER NO: 5 DOC NAME: 1204856478.DOC PAGE: 1 OF 1

APPENDIX I 

 

THIS CONTRACT made the                    day of                               Two thousand and nine 

B E T W E E N 

1 THE MAIDSTONE BOROUGH COUNCIL of Maidstone House , King Street , 
Maidstone , Kent ME15 6JQ (the Seller). 

2 PATRICK JOSEPH BURKE and PAMELA ANNE BURKE both of Moatlands 
Farm Howland Road Marden Kent TN12 9LB and PENSIONEER TRUSTEES 
(LONDON) LIMITED (company number 1688065 whose registered office is at 
Chalfont Court Hill Avenue Buckinghamshire HP6 5BB] (the Buyer) 

3 THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL of County Hall Maidstone Kent ME14 1XQ 
(KCC) 

IT IS AGREED THAT 

1 INTERPRETATION 

1.1 The definitions in this clause apply in this Contract 

“Principal Agreement”  an agreement dated 8 November 2007 made between 
the Seller (1) the Buyer (2) and KCC (3) 

1.2 Save as expressly stated to the contrary words and phrases in this agreement shall 
have the same meaning as in the Principal Agreement 

2 VARIATION 

2.1 It is hereby agreed and declared that the Principal Agreement shall be varied by:  

2.1.1 the deletion of the definition of “Termination Date 1” in clause 1.1 of 
the Principal Agreement and the substitution of the following: 

“’Termination Date 1’ 23 June 2014 subject to extension in 
accordance with clause 11.5 of this Contract” 

2.1.2 the deletion of the definition of “Termination Date 2” in clause 1.1 of 
the Principal Agreement and the substitution of the following: 

“’Termination Date 2’ 7 November 2014 subject to extension in 
accordance with clause 11.6 of this Contract” 

2.2 Save as expressly varied by this Agreement the Principal Agreement shall remain of 
full force and effect  

80



Asb law LLP 
 

File Ref: 00066170\00000005\$cr4heaqh.doc  2
 CLIENT NO: 66170 MATTER NO: 5 DOC NAME: 1204856478.DOC PAGE: 2 OF 2

 

the common seal of  

MAIDSTONE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

was affixed in the presence of: 

 

Solicitor- Authorised signatory 

 

 

SIGNED AS A DEED by PATRICK 
JOSEPH BURKE in the presence of: 

Witness signature 

 

Witness name 

 

Witness address 

 

 

 

Witness occupation 

 

) 

) 

SIGNED AS A DEED by PAMELA ANNE 
BURKE in the presence of: 

Witness signature 

 

Witness name 

 

Witness address 

 

 

 

Witness occupation 

) 

) 

81



Asb law LLP 
 

File Ref: 00066170\00000005\$cr4heaqh.doc  3
 CLIENT NO: 66170 MATTER NO: 5 DOC NAME: 1204856478.DOC PAGE: 3 OF 3

SIGNED AS A DEED for and on behalf of 
PENSIONEER TRUSTEES (LONDON) 
LIMITED acting by:  

 

Director 

 

 

Director/ Secretary 

 

) 

) 

) 

The common seal of 

THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 

Was affixed in the presence of: 

 

Authorised signatory 

 

 

 

 

82



Asb law LLP 
 

File Ref: 00066170\00000005\$cr4heaqh.doc  4
 CLIENT NO: 66170 MATTER NO: 5 DOC NAME: 1204856478.DOC PAGE: 4 OF 4

Dated                                                                                                                            2010  

 

 

MAIDSTONE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

and 

 

PATRICK JOSEPH BURKE PAMELA ANNE BURKE AND PENSIONEER TRUSTEES 
(LONDON) LIMITED 

and 

 

THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 

                                                                                                                                              

VARIATION TO A  

CONTRACT FOR THE SALE OF FREEHOLD LAND WITH VACANT POSSESSION 

at 

TOVIL DATED 8 NOVEMBER 2007 

                                                                                                                                              

 

 

 

 

 

asb law LLP 

Horizon House 

1 Eclipse Park 

Sittingbourne Road 

Maidstone 

Kent ME14 3EN 

 

83



84



Agenda Item 3

85

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



86

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	1 Report of the Head of Democratic Services - Response to Government Consultation Paper on Individual Electoral Registration
	Cabinet Member Report for Response to Government Consultation Paper on Individual Electoral Registration enc. 1
	Cabinet Member Report for Response to Government Consultation Paper on Individual Electoral Registration enc. 2

	2 Report of the Assistant Director of Environment and Regulatory Services - Land at Farleigh Hill, Tovil
	Appendix II
	Appendix I
	Appendix III

	3 Exempt Appendix to the Report of the Assistant Director of Environment and Regulatory Services - Land at Farleigh Hill Tovil
	Exempt Appendix for any report for Land at Farleigh Hill Tovil enc. 1


